Going along the Moskva River you will see interesting places of the capital, famous buildings and the bridges you pass under.
The River Moskva enters the capital from the northwest and flows in a number of huge loops in a general southeasterly directions. Within the city, it is nearly 80 km in length. The largest tributary of the River Moskva is the Yauza River. After the building of the Moscow Canal, The Yuza like the Moskva became navigable.

Borodinsky Bridge was built in 1912 to commemorate the 100th anniversary of the battle of Borodino. Long before, there had been wooden Dorogomilovsky Bridge. After the Borodino, the Russian army retreated across the bridge and then Napoleon’s army entered Moscow.

The architectural design of the bridge is unique. At one end you can see two semicircle colonnades with military attributes symbolizing the victory of Russian weapons in the Patriotic War. At the other end of the bridge there are memorial obelisk bearing the names of the Russian generals and partisans, and bronze bas-reliefs depicting different episodes of the war.
Ahead of us is one of the Moscow pedestrian bridges. White building to our left is Radisson-Slavyanskaya Hotel; the next structure with the spire and the clock is Kiev Train station, built by Raerberg in 1907.

Not far from Borodinsky Bridge you can see the White House of Russia. It is officially called the House of the Government of the Russian Federation.

The Vorobyevy Hills (Sparrow Hills) are the most picturesque and highest elevation on the right bank of the Moskva River. The area is 80 meters above the river and 250 meters above the sea level. It is a green area, with an environment better than in the rest of the city.

You can see the main 36-storeyd building of Moscow State University on the Vorobyevy Hills, which was completed in 1953. The University was founded by M. Lomonosov in 1755 on St. Tatyana’s day. Now it is the most popular university in Russia, making the competition for a place very intense. An MSU Diploma is recognized throughout the world.

The large sport arena was built in 1956. It can accommodate over 81, 000 spectators. This arena was called Luzhniki from the word “luzha” (puddle), and because of constant river floods, the lands had not been used before.
To the right is a ski jump which is a part of the sports complex “Luzhniki”. Many new facilities were erected for the Olympic Games in 1980. 

 The main arena was reconstructed in 2014-2018 before the 2018 FIFA World Cup which took place in Russia last year.

On the left from the bridge is the Friendship Gymnasium Hall, which looks like a tortoise. 

Above us you can see a new means of transport in Moscow - Moscow Cable Car. The new cable car project was initiated in January 2017. Construction began in May 2017 and was completed in November 2018. The first Moscow cable car is 720 metres long. There are three stations with unique architecture for each.
The Vorobyovy Gory station is located on Kosygina Street near the famous observation point. This is where the ski slope will be in the winter. The second station is called Novaya Liga and is located on Vorobyovskaya Embankment. It will mostly be used by skiers and snowboarders to get back up the hill. Luzhniki station is located on Luzhnetskaya Embankment near the stadium.

There are 35 covered gondolas with eight seats each. The gondolas were designed by Porsche Design Studio. They have media screens, LED illumination and hooks for bicycles, skis and snowboards. Passengers will also be able to use audio guides in four languages (English, Chinese, German and Russian).
The two storeyed bridge (the Metrobridge) is almost 12 km long.
To the right is a huge building of the Academy of Sciences, at the foot of which is one of the churches of former St. Andrew’s Monastery, founded in 1648.

The Crimean Bridge is situated near the Gorky Park, a favourite place for Muscovites on their days off. The park was opened in 1928 and stretches almost 3 km along the river. The name for the bridge comes from the settlement of Crimean Tatars who stayed in Moscow with ambassadorial missions.

The large white building houses are the Central House of Artists. It is a branch of the Tretyakov Art Gallery (it is not far from here) and houses the collection of modern art created since the 1920s. In January 1992, Moscow Mayor Yury Luzhkov signed a decree establishing the MUZEON Park of Arts. Gradually the statues were hoisted to their feet and arranged throughout the park. In the 2000s, the park began hosting symposiums for sculptors working with limestone; the sculptures they donated are displayed on a special square reserved for white-stone sculptures. The symposiums featured a wide range of subjects and participants, including professionals such as Fakhraddin Rzayev, Vladimir Buinachev, and Grigory Krasnoshlykov, as well as amateurs.
Now we have come to the split of drainage canal and Moskva River. Here the monument to the founder of Russian Navy is located. The statue to Tsar Peter the Great stands on the base made in the form of ship. The monument is 93 metres high and is made of bronze. The architect is Zurab Tsereteli.

Behind the monument is a large red-brick building of former the Red October Candy Factory, which was founded in the 19th century. Now it is an art-hall Lumiere Hall, the place of photography and modern art.
On your left is a four-storeyed house with a pitched roof which was built in 1909. It is an example of Moscow Art Nouveau. The façade is covered in colorful mosaics. Now the building houses the Embassy of Ethiopia.

On your left is a grey apartment house (on the embankment) which was built in the 1920s in the Constructivist style. It includes a movie-house, a food store, the Variety Theatre, and what not. On the façade there are memorial plaques because the building was inhabited by outstanding Russian statesman, scientists, and army generals. Its residents were arrested or executed during Stalin’s repressions.

Bolshoi Kamenny Bridge (The Big Stone Bridge) was built in the 1930s to commemorate the first Stone Moscow Bridge of the 17th century.

If you look to the right you will see an arched hole at the foot of the Big Stone Bridge. This is where the Neglinnaya River flows into the Moskva River. The Neglinnaya River was hidden underground in the 19th century, in its place, the beautiful Alexander’s Garden was created.

On the right-hand side is a beautiful mansion of the 19th century. It belonged to Kharitonenko who was a sugar magnate. Now it is the British Embassy. Great Britain was the 1st country to establish diplomatic relations with Russia after the October Revolution of 1917. There are two buildings of the British Embassy, both situated on the banks of Moskva River. The other is not far from Russian White House.

On your right-hand side, you can enjoy the beautiful sight of the Kremlin. The word Kremlin means a fortress. The first fortification wall was built atop Pine-Grove Hill by Yuri Dolgoruky in 1156. In the 1360s, under Prince Dmitry Donskoi, the White Stone Kremlin was built. It grew seven times in area.

At the end of the 15th century, under Ivan III, the red brick wall that we can now see was built by Italian architects Marco Ruffo and Pietro Antonio Solario (1485-1508). The wall is decorated with the swallow’s tail (fish tail) after medieval Italian fortresses. The wall has got 20 towers and 3 of them are entrances. The Kremlin wall is 1,5 miles long, up to 55 feet high and up to 15 feet thick. Today the area of the Kremlin is 28 hectares or about 64 acres.

Behind the wall the first building to the left is the Armory. It is one of the oldest and richest museums in Russia, which was founded at the very beginning of the 19th century. It contains treasures of applied art, produced by Russian and foreign craftsman beginning from the 12th to the 20th centuries. The pride of the museum is the collection of hand-crafted eggs of the world famous Faberge jewelry firm.

Next a yellow-white building is the Great Kremlin Palace, which was constructed by order of Nikolas I in 1849 (architect Konstantin Ton). It was used as the official Moscow residence of Russian tsars when St. Petersburg was the capital of Russia. Now it is used for receptions of foreign heads of state.  
Next to it is the Annunciation Cathedral with nine gilded domes. It was a private church of the Tsar’s family which was built in 1489. In the distance you can see the guild cupolas of the Assumption Cathedral. It was built by Aristotle Fioravanti in 1475-1479. The Cathedral was the main church in Russia. All the Russian tsars and emperors were crowned here.
The Church with the gilded cupola in the centre and 4 grey cupolas is the Archangel Michael Cathedral, which was constructed in 1505-1508 by the Italian architect Aloisi Novi. It looks like a Venetian palace. It was a state necropolis and all Russian tsars, beginning with Ivan Kalita (moneybag) to Peter II were buried there. 

The last building is Ivan the Great Belfry, built in 1600. It took almost 100 years to build it. Until the middle of the 20th century it was the highest structure in Moscow. Its height is 81 meters.

Moskvoretsky Bridge, near Red Square, is faced with pink granite to match the color of the Kremlin walls. It was built in the 1930s.
The former Russia Hotel was one of the largest hotels in Europe. Now it is Zaryadye Park, a space for leisure and education, created by international expert team.

At the Kitaii-gorod (Chinatown) passage end near the Moskva River stands the Church of the Conception of St. Anne of the 16th century.

In the opposite bank is the five-star hotel, Baltschug of the 19th century. The word  Baltschug means “dirty place” from the Tatar language. In the 18th century a drainage canal was built. Thus, Zamoskvorechye (“beyond the Moskva River”) turned into a place of gardens and parks. In the 19th century this area was populated by merchants, trades and artisants.

On your right is the power plant of the 19th century.

In the distance to the left, we can see one of the famous Moscow skyscrapers, the apartment house of Kotelnicheskaya Embankment. It was built from 1948 to 1952 in the style known as Stalinist classicism. The building was designed by D.Chechulin. There are seven buildings in Moscow now, which were originally erected  in commemoration of the 800th anniversary of Moscow.
Now let’s learn more about the main square of Moscow ​– Red Square. It witnessed many events of Russian history. Here, in 1547, the young Ivan the Terrible publicly confessed his misdeeds. During the Times of Troubles the body of False Dmitry was displayed in Red Square. And here Vasily Shuisky was both proclaimed Tsar and then deposed. The Cossack rebel Stepan Razin was dismembered here in 1671. In 1698, Peter the Great’s 2000-strong palace guard, the Streltsy were executed here. They had rebelled while he was visiting Western Europe. The Victory Parade to celebrate the defeat of Hitler’s Germany was held here.
The Square was mentioned for the ﬁrst time in the chronicles as a trading place in 1434. Its private names were Trinity, Great Mart, and Pozhar. 1n the 16th century a moat was dug out along the Kremlin walls, which was ﬁlled in with water from the Neglinnaya River.

In the 17th century people gave it a new name — Krasnaya, which meant “beautiful”. Under this name it is known all over the world. In the 18th and 19th centuries Red Square lost its political importance with the shift of the capital to St. Petersburg. It was used only as a market the weekend before Easter. After the October Revolution of 1917 military parades were grandly held twice a year on Red Square. Nowadays, it is a place for public gatherings, musical concerts and a military parade once a year on Victory Day.
The Kazansky Cathedral was built in 1630-1633 with money donated by Prince D. Pozharsky in memory of the miracle-working Kazan Icon of the Mother of God. The icon helped Russian troops during the Polish occupation of 1611-12. In 1936 Stalin ordered it blown up because it impeded the ﬂow of celebrating workers on May Day and Revolution parades. It was restored on the initiative of Moscow mayor Yuri Luzhkov in 1993.

Lenin‘s Tomb was initially constructed in wood. The present building of the mausoleum was erected in 1930 by the design of A. Schusev. From 1953 to 1961 Lenin shared his tomb with Stalin. The living Soviet leaders stood atop the tomb to watch the parades.
The Parade to commemorate the victory over Nazi Germany was held on Red Square on June 24, 1945. To the roll of drums, soldiers threw down 2 hundred enemy ﬂag standards in front of the Mausoleum.

In Soviet times the main necropolis grew up along the Kremlin wall. AII major leaders of Communist Party were buried there, with the exception of Nikita Khrushchev. Outstanding Russian achievers, such as Yuri Gagarin and Georgy Zhukov were buried there too.
A gateless square tower was built by Pietro Antonio Solari in 1491. It lemained nameless until the end of the 18th century when, following the construction of the Senate. it was called the Senatskaya Tower.

The Spasskaya (Savior) Tower was built by Pietro Antonio Solari and Marco Ruffo in l491. It is one of the tallest towers in the Kremlin. It served as the main gates. In olden days it was forbidden to drive or walk through the gates wearing a hat on one’s head. Even the tsars had to remove their hats.

In the 17th century the tower was topped with a multi-level spire. In 1851-1852 the clock, designed by Butenop brothers, was installed. This chime mechanism occupied three ﬂoors. The weight of the clock mechanism is about 25 tons. The clock has four faces, 6.12 metres in diameter. The length of the hour and the minute hands is 2.97 meters and 3.28 meters. The clock sends a melodic chime over Red Square every quarter of an hour. The sound comes from the clock’s numerous bells, many of which were cast back in the 17th-18th centuries.

The Intercession Cathedral on the moat is better known under the name St. Basil’s Cathedral. The name comes from side chapel where, as legend tells, Vasily the Blessed was buried. It was built by architects Barma and Postnik in 1555-1561 on the orders of Ivan the Terrible in memory of the Victory over the Khanate of Kazan.

Originally they planned to put up eight chapels. Each was dedicated to the feast of a saint. The fall of Kazan coincided with the feast of the Protecting Veil of the Mother of God. That’s why the central chapel was dedicated to that feast. The architects built nine chapels, in all, for the sake of symmetry. Later on, two more chapels were added— over the graves of Blessed Basil and John. The chapels are connected with a gallery and inner passageways.

All this was the' realization of idea of a «city cathedral». Now the Cathedral of St. Basil is a wonderful example of a unique fairy-tale architecture and a symbol of Old Russia around the world. It is included in the UNESCO list of World Heritage sites. The cathedral has been a branch of the State History Museum since 1928.

In front of St. Basil’s stands a monument to Citizen Kuzma Minin and Prince Dmitry Pozharsky. It was designed by I. Martos in 1818. It was erected in memory of the Russian Victory over the Polish and Swedish invaders in 1612. It was the first monument in Moscow.
Lobnoye Mesto is the round structure. It is faced with stone slabs. Architect M. Kazakov designed the present version in 1780. It was the place for reading state pronouncements while executions took place on wooden scaffoldings erected nearby.

There was a middle trading row in the early 20th century which was built by R. Klein but it was never used as shopping center. The upper trading rows (GUM) were built by architect A. Pomerantsev in 1893. They include over 1000 shops along three parallel grass-roofed passages.

The Nikolskaya Tower was so named because Nikolskaya Street begins there. The Nikolskaya Tower, with its small Gothic turrets and arrow-shaped arches, was built based on Pietro Antonio Solari’s design. It has been rebuilt many times and twice restored after its destruction, ﬁrst in I812 by French soldiers and then in revolutionary battles in October 1917. Originally, the tower had a bastion a transit gate and a drawbridge across the deep moat on Red Square. In 1612 the civilian army led by Dmitry Pozharsky and Kuzma Minin fought their way into the Kremlin and drove out the Polish invaders.

  The State Historical Museum was built by architect V. Shervud from 1874 to 1883. Its artifacts cover a period from the Stone Age to the middle of the 19th century. There are about 4.5 million items in the collection.
In June 24, 1945 there was a victorious parade on Red Square. It was opened by Field Marshal George Zhukov, whose monument now stands in front of the red-brick building of the Historical Museum. The monument was designed by V. Klykov in 1995.

Opposite the National Hotel is the grey corner building presently serving as the State Duma, the lower chamber of the Russian Parliament. It was erected in the 1930s for Gosplan.

The former City Duma was built by D. Chichagov in 1890-92. In Soviet times there was the Central Museum of V. Lenin. Now part of the building belongs to the State Historical Museum. The Resurrection Gates were built between the City Duma and Historical Museum in 1680. In 1781 in front of the Voskresenskiye Gates was built a chapel of the Icon of Our Lady of Iberia; that’s why the gate’s second name is Iberskiye Gates. But in 1931 they were pulled down. In 1994-96 the entrance into the Red Square was reconstructed under the direction of the Moscow Government.
Manezhnaya Square is the place where several key Moscow streets converge such as Tverskaya Street, Okhotny Ryad, and Mokhovaya Street. From 1961 to 1990 all of them went under one name, Prospekt Marxa. On the old maps of Moscow you can see streltsy settlement (16th -18th cent), Moiseevsky Convent (18th cent.), and merchants‘ mansions. The square is so named because the Manege was built in 1817 to mark the ﬁfth anniversary of the victory over Napoleon.
   The design of the building was worked out by the engineer, A. Betancourt, with the use of unique non-supporting wooden structures. The facade was built according to O. Bove’s design. It was used as a horse-riding school for Russian Court ofﬁcers and the nobility. From I831 it was used for exhibitions and concerts.

After 1917 it housed a government garage. In I957 the Manege was transformed into the Central Exhibition Hall. It was destroyed by the ﬁre in 2004 on the day of Russian presidential elections. but it has been reconstructed.

Not far from the Manege are the old buildings of the Moscow State University, founded on the initiative of M. Lomonosov and later named after him. At ﬁrst, the University occupied the site of the Historical Museum, and then moved to a new building on Mokhovaya designed by M. Kazakov at the end of the 18th century. It was restored after a ﬁre by D. Gilardi. In 1922, monuments to A. Gertsen and N.Ogaryov were erected in front of the main entrance (sculptor N. Andreyev). In 1953, many departments of the University moved to a new complex of buildings on Vorobyevy Hills The yellow building next to it was built by architect Zheltovsky m 1935. From 1930 up to I950 the building housed the American Embassy.

The open space with the glass dome on top is the Manege Square where underground has been built the Manege Shopping Mall Complex. The middle part of the square is slightly elevated. There is a recreation zone to the complex and it is connected to Alexander’s Garden. There is a water reservoir with the bridges imitating the Neglinnaya River.

The Neglinnaya River was buried in a tube before the construction of Alexander’s Garden in 1821-24. The garden above the river was laid out according to a design by O. Bove in the time of Alexander I.

On your left you can see the Tomb of Unknown Soldier (which was made by sculptor Tomsky), at the center of which burns the Eternal Flame. On the granite wall nearby are dark-red stones, under which the sacred soil from the Hero Cities is contained. The Tomb was opened in May 1967. Further down the alley you can see an obelisk which was erected in 1913 to mark the tercentenary of the Romanov dynasty. At the foot of the Intermediate Arsenal Tower Bove set an ornamental grotto, which he entitled “Ruins".
The tallest of the Kremlin Towers – the Trinity Tower — is 80m high. It is connected with the Kutafya Tower by a bridge. It is the main entrance to the Kremlin. 
The Cathedral of Christ the Savior is the largest church in Russia. It can accommodate about 15,000 believers. The original Cathedral of Christ the Saviour was built to commemorate the Russian victory over Napoleon. First, it was commissioned by Alexander I to be located in the Sparrow Hills, where Moscow State University now stands. After Alexander‘s death, Tsar Nickolay I relocated it to Volkhonka Street, not far from the Kremlin, where from 1547 the Convent of St. Alexis the Man of God was situated. According to architect K. Thon’s design the cathedral had to be built in Russo-Byzantine style. The construction went on for 44 years and was built with the people’s donations. Inside it was decorated by famous Russian artists such as K.P. Bryullov, V. Vereshchagin, L.N. Kramskoi, V.L. Surikov‘ and others. In 1883, the Cathedral of our Saviour was consecrated. The galleries encircling the cathedral bore marble plaques with the names of Russian soldiers killed in the 1812 war against Napoleon. However, 48 years later, on December 5, 1931, by Stalin’s orders it was blown up. He planned to build a great Palace of Soviets (416 metres high) on this site as well as a statue of Lenin. The palace was never built, because of World War II. In 1958 an open swimming-pool “Moskva” was put in its place.

 On the initiative of Moscow mayor Y.M. Luzhkov and the Moscow Govemment the reconstruction of the Cathedral started at the beginning of 1995. In 2000 the new structure was consecrated by his Holiness Alexy II, the Patriarch of Moscow and all Russia. Thus, the cathedral was built anew with the altar made in the form of a chapel.

   It is a huge cathedral complex, which includes the lower church of the Christ’s Resurrection, the Museum of the History of Orthodoxy, a cathedral hall for meetings with representatives of the church, a library of religious literature, and refectories decorated in the old Russian style. This Cathedral has become the symbol of revival of Christian Russia for millions of Russian believers. Besides its main function as the Patriarchal throne, it is the administrative centre of the Russian Orthodox Church. In the distance, on the opposite side of Volkhonka Street, is the Pushkin Museum of Fine Arts, which was built in the Greek classical style from 1898 to 1912 by architect R. Klein. It contains a ﬁne arts collection founded by Ivan Tsvetayev, a professor at the University of Moscow and father of the famous poet Marina Tsvetayeva. Starting at the end of the 18905, Tsvetayev travelled in Europe, Greece and Egypt to make exact copies of Roman statues, fragments of Greek temples and portals of Roman and Gothic cathedrals.

In 1909, the ancient Egyptian collection of Golenishchev was added to the Museum. He was a well- known Egyptologist: After the Bolshevik Revolution, the museum was also enriched by works of European masters from the collections of the Rumyantsev Museum, the Tretyakov Gallery and nationalized private collections. In 1932, it became known as the State Fine Arts Museum, and in 1937 on the 100th anniversary of the death of Pushkin, the poet’s name was added. The Museum has one of the world’s largest collections of the ancient, oriental. Classical and west-European art. It is famous for its Impressionist and Post-impressionist paintings. Here you can enjoy the world famous canvases of Monet, Renoir, Cezanne, Picasso, Matisse and Van Gogh. The museum has one of the world’s largest collections of ancient papyrus and other exhibits. It held the gold of ancient Troy found by the archaeologist Heinrich Schliemann in the 19th century, which came into Soviet possession after WWII. Next to the Museum, is the newer Museum of Private Collections. Between the Pushkin and Private Collections Museums, on Maliy Znamensky Lane, you will ﬁnd the Roerich Museum and the International Roerich Centre. Nikolay Roerich was a mystical Russian artist of the late 19th and early 20th centuries who spent a lot of time in Central Asia, India and the Altai Mountains of Siberia. On the opposite side of the street a green building houses the Glazunov Art Gallery and you can see the shortest street of Moscow (30 meters) which is called Lenivka.
Well, our journey is over. Thank you very much for your attention.
